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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF ARIZONA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF MARICOPA

AARON SHEARER; and
GREENBEEPRODUCE.COM LLC d/b/a GREEN BEE |  Case No.
PRODUCE, CV2016-015529

Plaintiffs,
VERIFIED COMPLAINT FOR
Vs. STATUTORY SPECIAL ACTION
AND DECLARATORY AND
CITY OF SCOTTSDALE, a municipal corporation; and INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT of the CITY OF

SCOTTSDALE,
Defendants,
i
Introduction
L, This is a civil rights lawsuit on behalf of a small business, Greenbeeproduce.com LLC

d/b/a Green Bee Produce, and its owner and statutory agent Plaintiff Aaron Shearer, who wishes to
promote and direct customers to her farmers market with temporary signs. Under the City of
Scottsdale’s (“Scottsdale™) ordinances regulating the display of signs (“Sign Code”), Plaintiffs are

forced to submit to an unconstitutional prior restraint in the form of a permitting process that gives



administrative officials unbridled discretion to determine if, where, and how long Plaintiffs will be
allowed to place temporary signs. Meanwhile, other temporary signs, because of the messages they
convey, can be placed without being subject to the same permitting process and, in some cases, no

permitting process at all.

2 Defendant City of Scottsdale’s Sign Code, on its face and as applied by the Board of
Adjustment in its September 7, 2016, decision against Plaintiffs, unconstitutionally prohibits or burdens
Plaintiffs’ rights to free speech and equal protection of the laws. The City’s Sign Code is also
impermissibly vague, imposes an unconstitutional prior restraint, and is unequally and arbitrarily
applied.

:. The City’s Sign Code imposes different rules on signs based on the “communicative
content™ of signs, in direct contradiction to the U.S. Supreme Court’s rulings. The Sign Code restricts
certain types of signs based on (a) “the topic discussed or the idea or message expressed,” Reed v. Town
of Gilbert, 135 S. Ct. 2218, 2227 (2015), (b) the speaker’s “economic motive,” Sorrell v. IMS Health
Inc., 564 U.S. 552, 567 (2011), and (c) “the identity of the speaker.” /d. These and other aspects of the
Sign Code violate the freedom-of-speech and equal protection guarantees of the state and federal

constitutions.

II.
Parties, Jurisdiction, and Venue

4. Plaintiff Greenbeeproduce.com, LLC d/b/a Green Bee Produce (“Green Bee Produce”™) is
a Limited Liability Company formed under the laws of Arizona, with its principal place of business in

Maricopa County, Arizona.



& Plaintiff Aaron Shearer is a United States citizen and is the registered agent for Green

Bee Produce.

6. Defendant City of Scottsdale is a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the
State of Arizona.

7 Defendant Board of Adjustment is a board of adjustment, as defined by A.R.S. § 9-
462(A)(1), and is an administrative agency established under A.R.S. § 9-462.06.

8. This Court has jurisdiction over this action and its claims as provided by A.R.S. §§ 12-
123, 12-124, 12-1831, and 9-462.06; Rule 4, Ariz. R. P. for Special Actions; Rule 57, Ariz. R. Civ. P.

0. Venue is proper pursuant to A.R.S. § 12-401 and Rule 4(b), Ariz. R. P. for Special

Actions.

I11.
Facts Common to All Claims

A. Green Bee’s Farmers Market

10.  Plaintiffs operate a temporary mobile farmers market that sells produce grown by
Arizona farmers.

11.  Plaintiff Shearer began operating Green Bee Produce in the parking lot at 16116
McDowell Mountain Ranch Road, Scottsdale, Arizona, in 2012.

12. McDowell Mountain Ranch Community Association (“The Association™) owns 16116
McDowell Mountain Ranch Road (“McDowell Mountain Ranch™).

13.  Plaintiff Shearer received permission from The Association to operate the farmers market
on its property. Plaintiff Shearer also has permission from The Association to place signs on its property

to help promote the farmers market and let its residents know where it is located.
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14. During 2012 and 2013, the market ran every Sunday from September through April.

3. To help direct customers to the weekly markets and advertise them, Plaintiff Shearer
placed signs on private property owned by The Association as well as in public rights-of-way.

16.  Plaintiff Shearer operates Green Bee Produce at Mountain McDowell Ranch pursuant to
a special event permit. Scottsdale Zoning Ordinance (“SZ0O™) § 7.900, et al. (since revised and
recodified at Chapter 22 of the City Code).

17.  On or around May 24, 2014, Green Bee Produce received a compliance notice for placing
signs in rights-of-way.

18.  The notice stated that, “per special event permit, the only allowed signs are directional
signs showing ingress to the parking lot and signs must be placed only on the property where the event
is occurring.”

19. On or around May 26, 2014, Plaintiff Shearer submitted a request for 16 to 24 off-
premises signs for Green Bee Produce but was granted only 4 signs at locations determined by the
Special Events Committee.

20.  Onor around January 30, 2015, Plaintiff Shearer obtained a special events permit to
operate Green Bee Produce at McDowell Mountain Ranch and was granted the use of 1 off-premises
sign.

4 Finding 1 off-premises sign to be inadequate, Plaintiff Shearer requested an additional 7
off-premises signs for Green Bee Produce on or about February 23, 2015. Plaintiff Shearer’s February

23, 2015, request was denied.



22. On or around March 30, 2016, Plaintiff Shearer submitted an application for a special
events permit on behalf of Green Bee Produce, seeking to operate a farmers market at McDowell
Mountain Ranch. With Green Bee Produce’s permit application, Plaintiff Shearer requested 13 off-
premises signs and provided a map indicating desired locations for sign placement.

23.  The Special Events Committee approved only 8 signs at locations it deemed acceptable.

24, SZO § 7.928 allows the decision of any special conditions of the Special Event permit to
be appealed to the Zoning Administrator. The Zoning Administrator is authorized to enforce and
interpret the number of locations of off-premises signs proposed as part of a special event permit
application.

25. On behalf of Green Bee Produce, Plaintiff Shearer duly appealed the Special Events
Committee’s denial of her requested signs and locations to the Zoning Administrator.

26. On or around June 30, 2016, the Zoning Administrator issued a decision that denied
Plaintiff Shearer’s request for 13 total signs, again limiting Green Bee Produce to 8 signs at locations
designated by the Special Events Committee.

27. SZO § 1.805 allows for an appeal of the interpretation or decision of the Zoning
Administrator to the Board of Adjustment.

28. On or around July 5, 2016, Plaintiff Shearer, on behalf of Green Bee Produce, appealed
the Zoning Administrator’s June 30, 2016, decision.

29. Exhibit 1 is a true and correct copy of the Board of Adjustment Report.

30.  On September 7, 2016, the Board of Adjustment voted 5-1 to uphold the Zoning

Administrator’s decision.



31. Exhibit 2 is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff Shearer’s slideshow which was presented
to the Board of Adjustment at the September 7, 2016 Board of Adjustment hearing.

32. Exhibit 3 is a true and correct copy of the Board of Adjustment’s Marked Agenda for
September 7, 2016.

33.  The only dissenting vote was registered by Board of Adjustment Vice Chair Paul Garry,
who stated that the City Sign Code “is unconstitutional, and I think therefore an abuse of discretion by

the Zoning Administrator ... .”

34. Board of Adjustment Member Paul Donahoe voted to uphold the decision, but stated, I
agree with Vice Chair Garry about, you know, there’s constitutional issues, I'm going to vote in favor of
the decision that was made.”

B. Scottsdale’s Sign Code

35.  The City of Scottsdale’s Sign Code is contained in Article 8 of the Scottsdale Zoning

Ordinance.

36. The Sign Code defines “sign™ as “[a]ny device for visual communication which is used or
is intended to attract the attention of the public, when the display of this device is visible beyond the
boundaries of the public or private property upon which the display is made.” SZO § 8.200.

37. No signs “may be placed or maintained in the city” except as provided in the Sign Code.
SZO § 8.102(1).

38. An “illegal sign” is “[a]ny sign erected without first obtaining an approved sign permit,

other than nonconforming signs.” SZO § 8.200.
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39. A “commercial sign™ is a “sign erected for a business transaction or advertising purpose.’
SZO § 8.200.

40. A “noncommercial sign” is “[a]ny sign that is not a commercial sign, including, but not
limited to, any traffic management or street sign erected by any governmental entity; any flag or badge
or insignia of the United States, State of Arizona, Maricopa County, City of Scottsdale, or official
historic plaque of any governmental jurisdiction or agency; any sign erected for a governmental use
(including the posting of notices required by law), or any sign pertaining to a candidate for public office,
or it supports or opposes a ballot measure, a governmental issue, political party, or relating to views
about social, economic, or governmental relationships.” SZO § 8.200.

41. Unless exempted by the Sign Code, a sign permit is “required before the erection,
reerection, construction, alteration, placing, or installation of all commercial signs.” SZO § 8.303(1).

42. A “temporary sign” is “[a]ny sign, banner, pennant, or valance constructed of cloth,
canvas, light fabric, cardboard, wallboard or other like materials. Any sign not permanently attached to
the ground, wall or building, intended to be displayed for a short period of time only.”

43. An “off-premises sign” is a “sign which is located on property other than where a
business is located, the product is sold, or the service is offered.” SZO § 8.200.

44. Unless exempted by the Sign Code, a sign permit is required before “off-premises sign”
may be placed. SZO § 8.102(I); SZO § 8.303(I).

45.  The Sign Code prohibits all signs in the “right-of-way” except for:

a. Signs for traffic management. SZO § 8.102(1IT)(A).
b. Signs identifying street names. SZO § 8.102(11I)(B).
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¢. Qualifying directional event banners for city-sponsored events. SZO § 8.102(11I)(C).

d. Signsin a community sign district created by City Council for all or part of the
Downtown Area or redevelopment area. SZO § 8.102(III)(D).

e. Signs erected by a governmental entity for a governmental purpose. SZO § 8.102(III)(E).

f. Signs that support or opposes a candidate for public office, or a ballot measure. A.R.S. §
16-1019, SZO § 8.106(VI), and SZO § 8.601(I)(L)(6),

46.  “Right-of-way” is not defined by the Sign Code, nor is a definition provided elsewhere
referred to or expressly incorporated into the Sign Code.

47.  Violations of the Sign Code are subject to “a civil sanction not greater than two thousand
five-hundred dollars ($2,500.00) except if the violation is for a non-permitted use or a conditional use
permit stipulation then the mandatory minimum civil sanction shall be five hundred dollars ($500.00).”
SZO § 8.104; SZO § 1.1401; SZO § 1.1402.

48.  If a second or subsequent violation occurs within 2 years of the date of the first civil
citation, the violation shall be deemed a criminal misdemeanor. SZO § 1.1401(B)(1).

C. Special Events Signage Permitting Process

49. The provisions of the Sign Code apply to special event signs. SZO § 7.930.

50. Scottsdale has categorized and continues to categorize Plaintiffs’ signs as special event
signs under its Sign Code.

51. A “special event” is “a temporary outdoor use on private property which extends beyond

the normal uses and standards allowed by the Zoning Ordinance.” SZO § 3.100.



32.

Under the Sign Code, the holder of a “special event” is allowed to display signs to

“support, promote and/or advertise the event/activity.” SZO § 8.537(I)(A).

33,

In order to be permitted to display signs, a special event applicant “shall prepare and

submit an application, consisting of a complete list and description of all signs, including directional

signs, banners, pennants, flags, balloons, lighting, hot/cold air balloons and other features associated

with the event/activity, and proposed times for erecting and removing the signs.” SZO § 8.537(I)(B).

54.

Signs for “special events” are subject to the following criteria:

Names and logos of sponsoring agency(ies) or business(es) shall be limited to twenty

(20) percent of the total area of lettering identifying the activity or event. SZO §
8.537(I)(B)(1).

All banners, pennants and flags shall be limited to twenty-four (24) square feet and shall
be suspended no higher than thirty-six (36) feet above grade, except that all banners,
pennants and flags suspended over roadways or driveways shall be no higher than
eighteen (18) feet above grade and maintain a minimum clearance of fourteen (14) feet.
Banners are allowed in the Downtown Area only. SZO § 8.537(1)(B)(2).

All signs, banners, pennants and flags spanning private walkways must maintain a

minimum clearance of seven (7) feet six (6) inches. SZO § 8.537(1)(B)(3).

. Temporary off premises directional signs shall be limited in sign area to six (6) square

feet for each sign. The total number and location of such signs shall be approved by the

general manager. SZO § 8.537(I)(B)(5).



55. A “special event” application for signs is “reviewed and approved by the general
manager.” SZO § 8.537(I)(B).

56. Because Scottsdale does not presently employ a general manager to discharge the duties
set forth in SZO § 8.537(1), the Special Events Committee acts as “general manager” for the purposes of
SZO § 8.537(1).

57. Unless a “special event” application for signs is approved by the relevant authority, a
“special event” may not use on-premises signs.

58. Unless a “special event” application for signs is approved by the relevant authority, a

“special event” may not use off-premises signs.

D. Commercial Speech Exemptions to the Sign Code
59.  Provided they are placed on Friday at 12:00 noon through Monday at 12:00 noon, auto

dealerships are allowed signs “for promotional events,” including miniature balloons, pennants, and
banners, without a permit. SZO § 8.600(I)(A).

60.  Signs erected to identify temporary sales areas for Christmas trees and other holiday-
oriented items do not require a permit, so long as they are erected before Thanksgiving Day and are

removed before New Year's Day. SZO § 8.303(II)(C).

61. “Off-premises open house directional signs™ with a maximum area of 4 square feet and a
maximum height of three feet do not require a permit provided the open house signs comply with SZO §
8.601(1)(D), and are used only when a salesperson or homeowner or homeowner's agent is present

during the time of the open house.
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E. Noncommercial Speech Exemptions to the Sign Code

62.  Temporary noncommercial signs are subject to different rules than temporary commercial
signs under the Sign Code.
63.  Temporary noncommercial signs, including political signs, do not require a permit. SZO

§ 8.601(I)(L); SZO § 8.303(I).

64.  Temporary noncommercial signs may be placed for 120 days without a permit. SZO §
8.601(I)(L)(1).

65.  Temporary noncommercial signs can be 16 square feet with a height of 10 feet. SZO §
SZO § 8.601(I)(L)(2), (3).

66. If placed behind a dedicated scenic corridor, temporary noncommercial signs can be 32
square feet. SZO § 8.601(I)(L)(2).

67. No distinction is made between on-premises temporary noncommercial signs and off-
premises temporary noncommercial signs. SZO § 8.601(I)(L); SZO § 8.200.

68. A political sign that complies with A.R.S. § 16-1019 may be placed in a right-of-way that
is owned or controlled by the City of Scottsdale if:

a. The sign supports or opposes a candidate for public office or it supports or opposes a

ballot measure.
b. The sign is not placed in a location that is hazardous to public safety, obstructs clear

vision in the area or interferes with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities

Act.
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c. The sign has a maximum area of sixteen square feet, if the sign is located in an area
zoned for residential use, or a maximum area of thirty-two square feet if the sign is
located in any other area.

d. The sign contains the name and telephone number or website address of the candidate or
campaign committee contact person.

69. A political sign that complies with A.R.S. § 16-1019 may be placed without permit or
approval in locations Plaintiffs were denied permission by Defendants to place signs. A.R.S. § 16-1019;
SZO § 8.106(VI); SZO § 8.601(I)(L)(6).

70. So long as a sign walker complies with A.R.S. § 9-499.13, the sign walker may hold a
commercial sign without permit or approval in locations Plaintiffs were denied permission by
Defendants to place signs.

IV.
Count One

Content-based, speaker-based, and motive-based speech restrictions
[U.S. CONST. amend. I — ARIZ. CONST. art. II § 6]

71; Plaintiffs reallege, adopt and incorporate by reference all of the preceding paragraphs as
though fully set forth herein.

72.  The First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution provides that “Congress shall make no law
... abridging the freedom of speech.” The First Amendment is made applicable to the states by the
Fourteenth Amendment.

3. Article II, section 6 of the Arizona Constitution provides that “[e]very person may freely

speak, write, and publish on all subjects, being responsible for the abuse of that right.”
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74.  These provisions together prohibit the government from imposing different regulations or
restrictions on expression based on the content of that expression, the identity of the speaker, or the
speaker’s motive, unless such regulations are narrowly tailored to advance a compelling government
interest.

75. Scottsdale’s Sign Code imposes different burdens, restrictions, and regulations on signs
based on the content of the messages conveyed by those signs. The only possible way for Defendants to
enforce Scottsdale’s Sign Code is to read the content of the signs to determine which set of regulations
apply. Scottsdale’s Sign Code requires permits for some signs, no permits for other signs, and imposes
different restrictions on the locations where, or times during which, signs may be displayed, based on
the content of those signs.

76.  SZO §§ 8.102(1),(IIT), 8.104, 8.106(1I)(A).(B), 8.200, 8.303 and 8.537, facially and as
enforced by Defendants, violate Plaintiffs’ right to free speech and expression guaranteed by Article II,
section 6 of the Arizona Constitution and the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States
Constitution.

s Defendant Board of Adjustment’s denial of Plaintiffs’ sign request violates Plaintiffs’
right to free speech and expression guaranteed by Article 11, section 6 of the Arizona Constitution and
the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution.

78.  Defendants, acting under color of state law, have deprived, are now depriving, and unless
enjoined by this Court, will continue to deprive, Plaintiffs of their right to free speech and expression

guaranteed by Article 11, section 6 of the Arizona Constitution and the First and Fourteenth Amendments
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to the United States Constitution. Plaintiffs have no adequate legal, administrative, or other remedy by
which to prevent or minimize the continuing irreparable harm to their constitutional rights.
79. For all of those reasons, defendants’ acts and omissions violate Plaintiffs’ rights under the

United States and Arizona Constitutions.

V.
Count Two

Prior restraint on speech
[U.S. CONST. amend. I — ARIZ. CONST. art. 11 § 6]

80. Plaintiffs reallege, adopt and incorporate by feference all of the preceding paragraphs as
though fully set forth herein.

81. The only way to exercise speech rights by using signs as a means of communication in
rights-of-way and on private property in the City of Scottsdale is to obtain the City’s prior approval in
the form of a permit—except in cases where the City’s Sign Code excuses certain messages from a
permit requirement.

82. But for Defendants’ enforcement of the Sign Code, Plaintiffs would engage in expression
by placing signs as described above to advertise and direct customers to their farmers market. The
existence of a permitting process that subjects Plaintiffs to civil and criminal penalties for failure to
obtain a permit chills Plaintiffs” speech, and the threat of criminal conviction induces Plaintiffs to self-
censor. The permitting process, therefore, is a prior restraint on Plaintiffs’ speech.

83. On its face and as enforced by Defendants, the permitting process set forth at SZO §
8.537 fails to provide narrow, objective, and definite standards to guide the licensing authority.

84. Defendants, acting under color of state law, have deprived, are now depriving, and unless

enjoined by this Court, will continue to deprive, Plaintiffs of their fundamental right to free speech and
14



expression in violation of Article II, section 6 of the Arizona Constitution and the First and Fourteenth
Amendments to the United States Constitution. Plaintiffs have no adequate legal, administrative, or
other remedy by which to prevent or minimize the continuing irreparable harm to their constitutional
rights.

85.  SZO §§ 8.102(I),(I11), 8.104, 8.106(I1)(A),(B), 8.200, 8.303 and 8.537, facially and as
enforced by Defendants, impose an unconstitutional prior restraint on Plaintiffs’ right to free speech and
expression guaranteed by Article I, section 6 of the Arizona Constitution and the First and Fourteenth
Amendments to the United States Constitution.

86. For all of those reasons, defendants” acts and omissions violate Plaintiffs’ rights under the
U.S. and Arizona Constitutions.

VI
Count Three

Equal Protection
JU.S. CONST. amend. XIV — ARIZ. CONST. art. II § 13]

87. Plaintiffs reallege, adopt and incorporate by reference all of the preceding paragraphs as

though fully set forth herein.

88. The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution states in relevant part that
“[n]o State shall ... deny to any person within its jurisdiction the equal protection of the laws.”

89. Article I, section 13 of the Arizona Constitution provides, “No law shall be enacted
granting to any citizen, class of citizens, or corporation other than municipal, privileges or immunities

which, upon the same terms, shall not equally belong to all citizens or corporations.”
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90. Defendants single out for separate and unequal treatment different types of signs based
on their content. Defendants not only provide a separate set of regulations that apply to commercial
signs than those that apply to non-commercial signs, Defendants also provide a separate set of
regulations for certain types of commercial signs than those that apply to other types of commercial
signs.

o1, On its face and as enforced by Defendants, the permitting process set forth at SZO §
8.537 singles out for separate and unequal treatment different types of signs based on their content and
the identity of their speaker.

92.  Defendants, acting under color of state law, have deprived, are depriving, and unless
enjoined by this Court will continue to deprive Plaintiffs of their right to equal protection of the laws in
violation of Article II, section 13 of the Arizona Constitution and the Fourteenth Amendment to the
United States Coﬁstitution. Plaintiffs have no adequate legal, administrative, or other remedy by which
to prevent or minimize the continuing irreparable harm to their constitutional rights.

93.  SZO §§ 8.102(1),(111), 8.104, 8.106(I1)(A),(B), 8.200, 8.303 and 8.537, facially and as
enforced by Defendants, violate Plaintiffs’ fundamental right to equal protection of the laws and equal
treatment under the law guaranteed by Article 11, section 13 of the Arizona Constitution and the
Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

94. For all of these reasons, Defendants’ actions and omissions violate Plaintiffs’ rights under

the U.S. and Arizona Constitutions.
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VIIL
Count Four
Due Process
[U.S. ConsT. amend. XIV — ARIZ. CONST. art. Il § 4]

95. Plaintiffs reallege, adopt and incorporate by reference all of the preceding paragraphs as
though fully set forth herein.

96.  The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution states in relevant part that
“[n]o State shall ... deprive any person of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law.”

97.  Article II, section 4 of the Arizona Constitution provides, “No person shall be deprived of
life, liberty, or property without due process of law.”

98. Defendant City’s Sign Code does not provide a person of ordinary intelligence with a
reasonable opportunity to know what types of signs are prohibited.

99. The definitions of different types of signs, or lack thereof, and subsequent set of
regulations that depend on such definitions are so vague that they fail to give people of ordinary
intelligence reasonable notice about what signs are permitted and what signs are forbidden. This
imprecision gives Defendants virtually unconstrained, arbitrary, standardless, and unfettered discretion
in interpreting the Sign Code and subjecting Plaintiffs to the continued threat of civil and criminal
sanctions.

100. Defendants, acting under color of state law, have deprived, are depriving, and unless
enjoined by this Court, will continue to deprive Plaintiffs of their right to due process of law in violation
of Article II, section 4 of the Arizona Constitution and the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States
Constitution. Plaintiffs have no adequate legal, administrative, or other remedy by which to prevent or

minimize the continuing irreparable harm to their constitutional rights.
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101.

For all of these reasons, Defendants” actions and omissions violate Plaintiffs’ rights under

the U.S. and Arizona Constitutions.

REQUEST FOR RELIEF

To serve the interests of equity and justice, Plaintiffs request that this honorable Court award the

following relief:

A.

Issue a declaratory judgment that SZO §§ 8.102(1),(I1), 8.104, 8.106(1I)(A),(B), 8.200, 8.303
and 8.537, on their face, violate Plaintiffs’ state and federal constitutional rights to Freedom
of Speech, Due Process of Law, and the Equal Protection of the Laws.

Issue a declaratory judgment that SZO §§ 8.102(1),(11I), 8.104, 8.106(11)(A),(B), 8.200,
8.303, and 8.537, as applied, violate Plaintiffs’ state and federal constitutional rights to
Freedom of Speech, Due Process of Law, and the Equal Protection of the Laws.
Preliminarily and permanently enjoin Defendants and their agents and employees from
enforcing SZO §§ 8.102(1),(I1I), 8.104, 8.106(11)(A),(B), 8.303, and 8.537.

Issue an order pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-462.06 and Rule 1(b), Ariz. R. P. for Special Actions,
reversing the Board of Adjustment’s decision on appeal and commanding the Board of
Adjustment to interpret the Sign Code in a truly content-neutral fashion;

Award attorney fees pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 12-341.01 and 12-348(A)(3), Rule 4(g) of the
Ariz. R. P. for Special Actions, 42 U.S.C. § 1988, and the private attorney general doctrine.
Award costs pursuant to A.R.S. § 12-341 and 42 U.S.C. § 1988; and

Order such additional relief as may be just and proper.
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RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 5th day of October, 2016 by:

Jared Blanchard (031198)

Aditya Dynar (031583)

Veronica Thorson (030292)

Scharf-Norton Center for Constitutional Litigation

at the GOLDWATER INSTITUTE
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

19



VERIFICATION
1, Asron Shearer, make the following verification pursuant to the requirements of A.R.S. § 12-1803. 1
have read the foregoing complaint, know the contents thereof, and verify that it is true of my own
knowledge, except the matters stated therein on information and belief, and that as to those matters, I

believe the complaint to be true.

Pursuant to Rule 80(i), Arizona Rules of Civil Procedure, 1 declare under penalty of perjury that the

A

foregoing is true and correct.

—e

Ic
ehal?ﬁf elf and Greenproduce.com LLC
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Exhibit 1



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

REPORT

Meeting Date: 9/7/2016
Item No.: 4
ACTION

Green Bee Produce ZA Appeal
9-BA-2016

Request to consider the following:

Applicant appeal of the Zoning Administrator’s written decision dated June 30, 2016 regarding
special event signage for Green Bee Produce, a temporary mobile famer’s market.

FARMER’S MARKET OWNER

Green Bee Produce

APPLICANT CONTACT

Aaron Shearer
Green Bee Produce
425-785-5400

LOCATION

McDowell Mountain Ranch Community Center Parking Lot
16116 N. McDowell Mountain Ranch Road

BACKGROUND

History

e In March 2016, the Green Bee Produce Farmer’s Market submitted a special event request
to hold a farmer’s market on various dates, predominantly Sundays beginning in October
2016, located in the parking lot of the McDowell Mountain Ranch Community Center. The
farmer’s market consists of one vendor with several tent canopies to display and sell
produce items. The request was approved in April 2016 and issued a special event permit
to allow the markets until the end of April 2017. A condition of the permit limited off site
signage to a total of 8 directional signs: 1 directional sign along Paradise Lane, 3 along



Board of Adjustment Report | 9-BA-2016

McDowell Mountain Ranch Road, 3 along Thompson Peak Parkway and 1 along Bell Road,
all located within a one mile radius.

¢ The event request included a total of 13 signs with proposed locations ranging in distance
from on site to up to two miles away from the market. The Special Events Committee (SEC)
approved 8 locations, based upon turning radius and located within a one mile distance,
but did not approve 5 locations located more than a mile away based upon the long
standing interpretation and approach on temporary off premise signage which allows
locations deemed necessary for safe traffic flow. Off premise signage may be necessary due
to the anticipated event attendance (large volume of vehicles) or event location (hidden, off
major streets). The applicant appealed this decision to the Zoning Administrator which
upheld the SEC’s decision in the letter dated June 30, 2016 (Attachment #1).

e OnJuly5, 2016 the applicant filed for an appeal of the Zoning Administrator’s decision per
the provisions of Section 1.805. of the Zoning Ordinance.

Zoning/Development Context

The subject event is a temporary, mobile farmer's market planned to be held beginning in
October 2016 on various Sundays from 8am to no later than 2pm in the parking lot of the
McDowell Mountain Ranch Community Center located on the northwest corner of McDowell
Mountain Ranch Road and Paradise Lane within a residential area.

The zoning for this site is Planned Convenience Center with an Environmentally Sensitive Lands
Overlay District (PCoC ESL). This District allows for permitted special events. The zoning to
both the north and west is Single Family Residential (R1-5 ESL). The zoning to the east is Single
Family Residential (R1-10 ESL & R1-18 ESL). The zoning to the south is Townhouse Residential
(R-4 ESL).

Zoning Ordinance Requirements
Section 7.930 of the Zoning Ordinance states that the provisions of Article VIII (Sign
Reguirements) shall apply to special event signage.

Section 8.537.1.B.5. of the Zoning Ordinance states that temporary off premises directional
signs shall be limited in sign area to six square feet for each sign and that the total number and
location of such signs shall be approved by the general manager. A general manager position
currently doesn’t exist in a planning and development capacity and that decision role has been
delegated to the Special Events Committee.

Section 7.928. of the Zoning Ordinance allows the decision of any special conditions of the
Special Event permit be appealed to the Zoning Administrator. The Zoning Administrator is
authorized to enforce and interpret the number and locations of temporary off premises
directional signs proposed as part of a Special Event permit application.

Section 1.805. of the Zoning Ordinance allows for an Appeal of the interpretation or decision of
the Zoning Administrator to the Board of Adjustment.
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Code Enforcement Activity
There has been no recent Code Enforcement activity regarding the proposed special event.

On January 27, 2015, the City received a complaint from a resident related to the Green Bee
Farmer’s Market off premise signs that were present in the McDowell Mountain Ranch
neighborhood over the previous weekend on the event date. Code Enforcement staff went to
the site and spoke with the property owner (McDowell Mountain Ranch Community
Association) conveying that a Special Event permit was required for any event to occur on site
along with approval for any off premise signage. The property owner contacted the Green Bee
Farmer’s Market owner and relayed the requirements. The Green Bee Farmer’s Market owner
worked with staff to submit the required documents for the permit approval which was issued
on January 30, 2015. The permit conditions allowed for the requested two off-site directional
signs along McDowell Mountain Ranch Road.

Community Input

Staff has sent postcards to all property owners within 750 feet of the site and posted a hearing
sign on the site. As of the writing of this report, staff has received two phone inquiries regarding
the appeal request. One was seeking general information and one resident voiced concerns
about the signage. The resident helieved there were too many signs in her community,
believing that a farmer’s market, placed in a local residential setting, caters to the local
residents and having multiple signs placed a large distance away, brings additional traffic and
attention to her neighborhood, no longer making it a local farmer’s market. In addition, she felt
they are visually unappealing and obstruct corners where they are placed.

Discussion

A special event is defined as a temporary outdoor use on private property which extends
beyond the normal uses and standards allowed by the Zoning Ordinance. In this request, the
reoccurring event is held mostly on Sundays and located in the parking lot of the McDowell
Mountain Ranch Community Center, surrounded by residential properties. The farmer’s market
consists of one vendor, several tent canopies, and a variety of produce items for sale.

The owner has requested to be allowed to place several off premises signs on public property
within the right of way on planned event dates, in order to promote the market, remind people
that it is occurring, and use signs to direct them to the event. Private off-premise signage is not
permitted within the city right-of-way.

The Special Events Committee (SEC) gives careful consideration for any proposed event signage,
both on site event and off-site directional signs to insure that attendees can locate and be able
to identify the event to know when they’ve arrived. The City’s Sign Ordinance is a reflection of
the community’s desire to ensure thoughtful placement within City boundaries. Unnecessary
signage placed to help promote and market the event outside of the area gives a direct
advantage to event producers for daily advertising anywhere in the City that all other
businesses cannot enjoy. The SEC reviews for consistency in its application to ensure sign
placement does not visually impact the physical and natural beauty of the community and stays
focused on the need for any off-premise directional signs to allow for safe movement of
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vehicles and attendees to enter and exit the event safely. This event has a low volume of
anticipated event attendance (few, intermittent vehicles) and is highly visible from the major
street (easily located). This is consistent with the application of sign placement associated with
other temporary signs.

Applicant’s Appeal
The Applicant’s Appeal of the Decision to the Zoning Administrator submitted contains two
arguments for approval for off premises signage as outlined below:

1. The Special Event Permit provides rights that are not granted to other businesses based
upon the temporary nature.

2. The farmer’s market is unique and does not compare with any past or present events and
should therefore not have created rules or criteria applied to it as the Code is ambiguous in
nature and may be interpreted and applied based on each unique situation.

Findings

In a typical request to the Board of Adjustment, the Board must review and determine if the
required four (4) findings have been justified to allow a Zoning Variance. In the case of an
appeal of the Zoning Administrator decision, such as this one, these findings are not required
and the Board of Adjustment will need to:

e Determine whether or not it has jurisdiction over this matter;

e Determine whether the Applicant has standing; and, if the Board first finds that it has
jurisdiction over the matter and that the applicant has standing, then the Board shall;

e Discuss the merits of the case to determine whether or not the City’s application of
requirements for special event signage is arbitrary, capricious or an abuse of discretion.

Staff Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Board of Adjustment find that Zoning Administrator decision was
not arbitrary, capricious or an abuse of discretion, and concur with the Zoning Administrator
that the temporary, reoccurring off premises directional signage be limited to the locations
along McDowell Mountain Ranch Road, Bell Road, Thompson Peak Parkway and Paradise Lane.
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APPROVED BY

g-22

Fﬁers, Events Manager, Report Author

480-312-7834, csumners@scottsdaleaz.gov

2o

Date

€222tk

Brad Carr, AICP, Board of Adjustment Liaison
480-312-7713, becarr@scottsdaleaz.gov

Date

@%2.3{/20{{

Tim Cuﬁévm, Current Planning Director

480-312-4210, tcurtis@scottsdaleaz.gov

ATTACHMENTS

Date!

Appeal Decision dated June 30, 2016

Event/Market Site Plan
Applicant Narrative
Applicant Evidence

ol

Map of 8 proposed off premise signage locations — April 6, 2016
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Current Planning
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June 30, 2016

Aaron Shearer

Green Bee Produce

462 S. Robson

Mesa, AZ 85210
admin@greenbeeproduce.com

Re: Appeal of the Signage Conditions of the Green Bee Farmer’s Markets Special Event Permits

Dear Aaron,

Thank you for meeting with me May 23, 2016 to explain your market events and related signage needs.
The fresh produce market events that you hold weekly appear to be something welcomed and desired
by the community, which is fantastic. At issue [s the signage request as part of the special event permits
approval,

There are two main purposes for the sign code. The first is for general aesthetics of the city, reducing
visual clutter to allow the prevalence of the physical and natural beauty of the community, The second is
for traffic safety within the city. Reducing the number of signs visible to motorist promotes greater
traffic safety in the community and orderly travel on the roadways. Private off-premise signage is not
permitted within the city right-of-way.

The Zoning Ordinance, under Section 8.537., refers to Special Event Signage as needing approval by the
general manager (or, the Special Event Committee as delegated by the general manager) and focuses on
both on-site event signage and off-site event signage related to directional needs as noted below. My
understanding iIs that on-site event signage has been approved, but at is issue Is the approved off-site
premises directional signage that remains in disagreement.

Sec. 8.537. - Special events and theme amusement parks.
~ Speclal events and amusement parks are allowed signs as follows:
l.  General.

A.  Events/activities which wlll occur on a deslgnated date or during a limited period of time shall be
allowed signage to promote the event/activity. The signage will support, promote and/or advertise the
event/activity and may contain the names of a specific agency or business that is sponsoring the
event/activity. All signs assoclated with the event/activity are temporary and must be removed by an
the date specified by the general manager.

B. The organization sponsoring the event/activity shall prepare and submit an application, consisting of a
complete list and description of all signs, including directional signs, banners, pennants, flags, balloons,
lighting, hot/cold alr balloons and other features associated with the event/activity, and proposed times
for erecting and removing the signs. The application will be reviewed and approved by the general
manager.

1. Names and logos of sponsoring agency(ies) or business{es) shall be limited to twenty (20) percent
of the total area of lettering identifying the activity or event.

2, All banners, pennants and flags shall be limited to twenty-four (24) square feet and shall be
suspended no higher than thirty-six (36) feet above grade, except that all banners, pennants and
flags suspended over roadways or driveways shall be no higher than eighteen (18) feet above
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grade and malintain a minimum clearance of fourteen (14) feet. Banners are allowed in the
Downtown Area only.

3. Al signs, banners, pennants and flags spanning private walkways must maintain a minimum
clearance of seven (7) feet six (6) inches.

4. Searchllghts are prohibited except in those cases where allowed in Section 7-602 of the zoning
ordinance, i

5. Temporary off premises directional signs shall be limited in sign area to six (6) square feet for each
sign. The total number and location of such signs shall be approved by the general manager,

Currently, the farmer’s market Is approved for a special event permit at the McDowell Mountain Ranch
McDowell Center located at 16116 N. McDowell Mountain Ranch Road. Included in that approval are
allowances for off-premise directional signage related to the farmer’s market. A total of 8 directional
slgns are allowed for the farmer’s market event, which include signs along McDowell Mountain Ranch
Road, Bell Road, and Thompson Peak Parkway north of McDowell Mountain Ranch Road all within a mile
radius of the farmer’s market. Your request sought 13 total off-premise directional signs to be located
within a 2.5 mile radius of the farmer’s market,

The City of Scottsdale Sign Ordinance, Section 8.102.111., has specific criteria for allowance of signs within
the right-of-way or on public property. Those signs relate to signs for traffic management and signs
erected by a governmental entity for a governmental purpose. The city has been allowing off-premises
traffic directional signage In association with a special event permit, and after careful consideration by
the Special Events Committee, when that signage has been shown to align with the traffic directional
needs, not advertising needs, of the specific special event, as outlined in Section 8.537.1.B.5. of the Sign
Ordinance. The number and location of that signage has followed a policy of reviewing the proposed
event against several criteria, including the attendance of the event and traffic safety management
needs,

There is careful consideration given for any proposed event signage, both on-site and off-site directional
signage, to ensure attendees can locate the event and know when they have arrived. The City
understands that event signage is temporary and only erected on event dates. The City needs to ensure
that unnecessary signage isn’t being placed to help promote and market the event outside of the area
and that off-site signage Is limited to the directional signage that attendees may need to locate the
event. Otherwise, this gives a direct advantage to event producers for daily advertising signage
anywhere in the city that all other businesses cannot employ. Speclal event directional signage Is
intended to assist motorists going to an event find the event and enter and exit safely. It is not intended
to advertise the event to motorists up to 2 miles away.

This event is in the same location each week. People who have previously attended the market and
those who live in the community can reasonably get to the market without the need for any directional
signage. Additionally, If the address of the market event is promoted, people can look on their smart
phones or GPS devices to locate the market and find directions as well. | realize there were several
letters that commented to the fact that while they knew where the market was, they enjoyed and used
the signage as reminders that the market was happening that day. That is not a purpose for permitted
directional signage. The City expects that the event producer is helping to promote their market in many
ways other than off-site signage (social media, email, printed material, newsletters, community
marketing, etc.). Those locking for the market would encounter directional signs within a half mile of the
event, which should aid in those seeking assistance for the market location.

The City’s Sign Ordinance is a reflection of the community’s desire to ensure thoughtful sign placement
within its boundaries. The multitude of sign locatlons can visually detract from the physical and natural
beauty of the community and what may be viewed acceptable by some are nuisances to others.
Directional signage focuses on traffic safety, which is taken into consideration when reviewing the sign
request. It does not incorporate off-site promotion and marketing of the event.



| am unable to provide additional off-premise directional signage approval for the locatlon beyond what
was has already been approved by the Special Event Committee for the reasons noted above.
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Notice: This document is provided for general information purposes only. The City of Scottsdale does not warrant its
8/22/2016 10:53:01 AM accuracy, completeness, or suitability for any particular purpose. It should not be relied upon without field verification.




NARRATIVE

July 5, 2016
Applicant: Green Bee Produce

Special Event permit # 67-SE-2016 / 222970

REQUEST: Board of Adjustments Hearing per Section 1.805- appealing Zoning Administrators Decision on Special
Event Permit restrictions

Green Bee Produce is a mobile farmers market that hosts farmer’s markets on private property in Scottsdale. On April
29, 2016 Green Bee was issued a special event permit (253-PA-2016) with restrictions. Green Bee had requested 5 off
site directional signs, which was denied by the Special Events Board. Per section 7.928, Green Bee filled a notice of
appeal with the Zoning Administrator. The meeting with the Zoning Administrator was held on May 23, 2016. Per
Section 7.928, the Zoning Administrator is required to give a written decision no latter then 5 days after the appeal
meeting. Despite this specific Code Requirement, and despite 6 written requests over a period of 32 days, finally on
June 30" the Zoning Administrator, through Brad Carr (Scottsdale’s Senior Planner), issued a decision denying Green
Bee’s request. Per section 1.805, Green Bee is appealing the Zoning Administrators decision to the Board of

Adjustments.

Green Bee will prove at the Board of Adjustments hearing that the Zoning Administrators decision to deny Green Bee’s
request for 5 off site directional signs is unconstitutional, bias, and an abuse of discretion.

Due to the past issue with the Planning Department deciding (without notice to either party) not to present the BOA
with all the supporting documents Green Bee had provided at the review meeting, and instead picking and choosing
only the documents they wanted the BOA to see (eliminate the most important documents of Green Bee's case......)

Green Bee has decided to present our supporting information directly to the BOA at the appeal hearing.

Since Scottsdale Senior Planner, Brad Carr, was involved in issuing the Zoning Administrators appeal decision on June
30", and Mr. Carr is also responsible for making the recommendation to the BOA, there is no point in Green Bee
partaking in any pre application / review / informational meetings. Senior Planner, Brad Carr, has already made his
decision based off the opinion of the Zoning Administrator, so we already know what the recommendation will state.
Therefore, Green Bee waives the right to any pre-hearings or review processes and demands that the City issue their
Recommendation based on the knowledge and opinions they have already made.

Furthermore, due to the excessive length of time the Zoning Administrator took to issue a decision (over a month) and
the fact that the Planning Department collaborated with the Zoning Administrator to issue his decision, (so there is no
extra time needed to conduct the timely pre hearing reviews) there is no reason why Green Bee’s appeal can’t be
scheduled for the next BOA meeting in August 2016. According to section 1.803, as long as the application and
request is filed at least 15 days prior to the next BOA meeting, the case may be scheduled to be heard at the next
meeting. There is plenty enough time to accommodate that request and still adhere to the legal terms outlined in the

Scottsdale City Code.

Thank you,

Green Bee Produce
admin@greenbeeproduce.com

9-BA-2016 i
ATTACHMENT #4 715116



re-Application and

pecial Event Permit.

.Concurrent Application

67-SE-2016 253 _on. 2016

Purpose: Thank you for choosing Scottsdale as the location-for your event. The purpose of lhe Pre-
Application subniittal and Special Events:Commiitee meeting; is:for the-applicant and Cliy Staff to-discuss the
proposed special-event requesi-and the information that is necessary for City Staff'to process an application
that complies with all rules, regulations and best practices for a safe event.

Submittal: You may-subniit your application-gnling or In person al the One-Stop-Shop located at 7447 East
Indian School Road. Please note that there Is an $87 nonrefundable Submittal fee for the application. All
checks shall be payable to "City of Scottsdale’; checks and credit cards are-also-accepted.

Scheduling: After this packet has besn accepted at the One-Stop-Shop; a staff member will contact the
Applicant within five (6) Staff Working Days to schedule a meefing:with the:Special Event Committee.
Generally, & meefing is scheduled within five (5) to fifteen (15) Staff Working Days from the date of the

subniittal. Meetings are held Wednesdays beginhing at 9 am at-Current Planning, 7447 E. Iridian School Rd.
The committee:is: compnfsed of representatives of various cily. departments with differing arees of expertise.
The'meeting Is.Informal-and you can ask questions, solicit suggestions, ant éven modify your event plans.
Onice an application is approved, the'Speclal Evént Permit fee is $105 for events oiit private property and $159
for events on publicproperty. The permit fee is separate from-your $87 submittal fee.

Publi¢ Information: Pleage note the information you provide.becomiés-public information,

;" : Cdutéct lnformatiori

ﬁ,’;‘i;'ﬁﬁ'-;‘ Nomg Aaron Shearer

Moblle Phone:4257855400

E-mail:admin@greenbesproduce.com

Organization or Green Bee Produce
Business Name
{ Holding Event:

P L R

On:ite Parson.Responsible for Event Operations: Aaron

| Mobile Phone:4257855400

Bl e e i, D A T T T £, T 5 i g e B R S §

Tourlém' and Events
7506 E. Indian School Rd; Scottsdale; AZ 85251
480-312-T177

211112016

9-BA-2016
7/5/16
ATTACHMENT #5
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Evmf Name Green Bee P: oduce Falmels Mari(et

Wiil.¢the event oecur on ..,ity of Scotisdale property or.in a public street (right-of-way) Yes [ ] No
Eyent Address: 16116 McDawell Mountain Raneh Road: '

Event Website (required if avallable):www.greenbeeproduce,com

lEl
13

e
i
[‘EJ

Evenst Description (Dr attach iatiative):
Farmars Markat-

Event Includes Qutclom- Muslc? Yes li] ’\lo‘

"’ﬁb dm; 1 maof

E v hs-:,:ai}; ]

L.._._...‘_.._.- S st it s mar i i o e

EgYmate

e - Event. Eue_nt ‘Eveat Set Up. .| Evant Clean Up|{.. SR
Dale Htart Thne Exd Time Start Time  : Complele Time Attemg:y“ per
s - ! . : v e -
Tuesday Every Sunday |lentative dates
Wacttesday 10/15,16,23,30 | 2/512,49,28 | £€/2,11,18,26
“Thursday 1176,13,20 [ 8/5;12:19,26| suvrvermracen=s s
Friday 12/4,11,18° 412,8,28,30
‘Seturday 1/8,15,22,29 5/7;21 ‘
“Sunday Sam' 1pm 7am unknown
Ry o . T!Ncl ;Q,r’n:h‘ )

Site I"lan. A detaller.l s:te p[an I., requlred_appl!caﬂons wﬂl not be pmcessad w:thout |f Attach separate
document(s), Site plans should cléstly show tha location of the evént; areas uséd for parking, fencing,
entry/exit points, ténts/canopies-(include dimensions); stages. (mciude dimerisions), generators, bars,
tables/chalrs; portal:le restrooms, signs, ete. A roule map is required for diglance evénts such:-as walks,
runs, rlcles and parades Useful mapplng resourcas Includa (prln; @nd draw ony map)

Maricopa: or & City of Scotisdale Digj L

Tourlem and Evenis-
7608 E. Indian Behool Rd, Scofisdale, AZ 85261
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Aaron,

This is to notify you that you may resume your farmers markess i our parking.lots as you previousiy
have done when your matters with the City of Scottsdale have been resolved.

Thank you

Michael Wodlington, CAAM®

General Manager

McDoowell Mountain Ranch Community Associztlon
AAM, LLC

Ph: 480-473-0877

Fax: 480-473-3172

1602) 957-9191 (main line)



4
i
!

All special events taking place an City property require the evant holder to carry lisbility insurance for

their own proteclion as well as insurance protaction for the Cily of Scottsdale. Required coverage and limits will
‘be at the discretion of the Risk Management Division depanding-on the size and scope of lhe event. Prior fo
the issuanée of your Special Event Permit, the event producer must submit-a Certificate of Insurance with the
Insurance limits and coverage’s shown in the table below are in full force and éffect and raust name the City of
‘Scotisdale as an Additional Insured,. For atfiletic: events (Walking, Running, Swimming, Biking) which include a

Tiabllity waiver that patticipants are required fo s:gn the everit sponsar must include in. the- walver eithiel the City |

of Scoftsdale by narme or by reference.ag premises ownér or property ownier. For questions, contact Rislc

NManagement at 480-312-2490,

: o _l] 16  Ciabilt © $4,000,000 | Each Occuirence h
1 Commerdisl General Liability : — = , -

(required from all event producers) $2'UDD"OOQ Products -~ Completed Operations J!
o , ~ $2,000,000 | General.Aggregate. 4
1 Liquar Liability §1,000,000 | Each Common Cause and Aggregate !
i OR (depending on avent) - $5,000,000 | Edach Conimoh Cause and Aggregate |
Check one:

None of my event-takes place. on city property (city facllity, street, sidewalk, right-of-way, elc.).
{1 Alloraportion of my event takes place on clly property and | will provide the required insurance.

LIABILITY WAIVER REQUIREMENT: For eveiits (fiarticularly. athletic events stich as waiklng. running,
“swimming and biking) which include a fiability walver to participate, the Iiability waiver shall waive liability for the
Gity of Scottsdzle by name. The City may require Jability walvers for evenis when the nature of the event
subjects Individual participants to-unusual personal risk. _

Touriewm ang Events
7506 £, Indian Bchool Kd. Scoitscale, AZ 85244



N ’wm T TRAEFC :

Applieani st esponsmla for ensunng adequate. patkmq Tor- altendees and for mmlmlzmg any negatlve impacts to |
adjeicent areas. Applicant is responsible for obtaining duthorized: apmoval far any private parking areas; a copy
of the approval must be inclided with this application. FFor evenis using valunteers for traffic control {e.g.,
course marshals), evant valunteers cannol direct fraffic in the street. They may provide guidance from the
siclewalk, other pedestridr area, or en a closed sireet.

The event will Include the following {checlk-all that apply):
Existing public-parking {city parking lof,. city parking.garage, on-street parking)
/] Qri-site parking (may require property owner and/or landlord approval)

Off-slte parking (approvel fioin property manager/owner required)

Shutile service from off-site parking areas (altach-shutile plari)

OO0 O8O3

Valet service (provide a valet parking plan from the valet company)

Valei company: i , A n—

Contact pérson: Phone number:.

Contact Tax & License al{480) 312-2400 fo obtain a VALET PARKING LICENSE APPLICATION if event valet
Is propased:-on public praperty.

a‘ T B L T e T -

ﬁ R ’ . ; P ‘-.;‘_\'“n;&,

s ey

Apphcan is responsu:tle for hiring & barricade coingEany for any streel. alley, Iane or public s° cicawalk closure
Thie-City of Scottsdale dues nol provide barricades. Show proposed closuras-on the Special Event sife plan.
‘Any street closures and barricade set-up/removal shafl match the approved barricade plan on file. . Overgight of
“barricade set-up is the responsibllity of event applicant. Discrepancies or- safety issues may result in the defay.
or cancellatioh of the event,

:The event will Include the following (check all that ap‘p‘l_y):
i Bidewalk closure: Siréet | Alley” iLane dosure(s)

Barricade corpany:

Contact person: Phorie number:

Towdsm and Bvanis
7806 E. indian School Rel, Suotisdale, AZ 88251
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Applicant is respopsible for providing a safe and secure event. This includes the event venue, event parking
areas, and adjacent areas affected by the evant. Applicarit must ensure adequate personnel are present to
provide-general sgcurity, mainlain order, contain liguor lo licensed premises, protect money, provide medical
assistance, etc. Depending on the nature of the event, privale secrity parsonnel and/or off-duty police offilcers
may be required. To hire.Scottsdale PO off~duiy officars, call 480:312-4385,- Any privalely hired security mus{
e licensed In the State of Arizona. The Scoﬁsdala Fire Departiment recommends .an emergency madical
standby when dally altendance excaads 5,000 people. Qccupancy loads must adhere Lo that which Is set by

the Eire Department.
The event will include the following-(check all that apply):
Security Personnel
[¥]  In-house staff andlor voluntesrs
[ Hired security pérsonnel
Ccmpany name:
Contact person: _ Phone number:

(7] Hired off-duty police offlcers. Estimated pumber:
[ Scolisddle PR off-duty officers

Other agency name: |

Conlact person:. Fhone number:

Meodical Standby
[1 Stendby emergsncy medical staff (parameclics/EMTs)

Company narme:

Coritact person: _ {Phone humber:

Tourlsm and Evenite
7506 E.Indien Schoal Rd. Scotisdale, AZ 85251



% 20 feet or larger), ‘Tarits shéll e shown on the Speclal Evend site plan. For-additional information, call 480-
3121843, TenlLpermit applications must be received by the Scottsdale Fire Department al least 10 clays prior {o
1 the eveant.

[0 There will be tents 400 square Teet or larger.
Supplier: - .

Conlact person; Phone number:

A tenl permit issujed by the Scollsdale Fire Departiment is required for any tent 400 square feel or larger (20 feet

Location of the generator. shall be shown op the Special Event slie plan. « -

[l There will be a generator 20kw or larget,

Licensed contractor:

Contact person: Phone number:

A commercial minimum electiical permit issued by Permit Services Is required for any generator 20kw of larger,

-8igns and banners are regulated by the Zoning Ordinance and will-be- mwawed as part of the application.
request. Approved signs and banners may only be posted on the day of the event. Fence wrap graphics miust
tace the Interlor of the event venue.

The-event will include the-following (check all that apply):
Directional signs (show locations on Spscial Event site plan andfor area map)

/]  Signs or banners visible from outside the.venue {show locations on Special Event:site plan)
Describe (include dimensions and wording): Directional Fafmem Markat

TS
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If vendors (food, retail sales, display/information; games, etc.) will be present at your event, you must supply a
list of vendors with this application and also contact the:City of Scottsdale Tax and License Department at 480~
312-7626. .

The-event will include the following categories:of vendors (check all that apply):

Feod [] Retall [] Displayinfe []. Games[]  Olher:[7]

_ Touriem ar.d Svents
75806 E. ‘ndian Schoal B4 Scaitsdale, AZ 85251



i e a—,

Applicant is required to haye an event staff member responsible for monitoring sound levels when
sound/music/nolse may be audible beyand the event vente, Noise complaints can result in calls for service
from the Scottsdalé Police Department. A po!ice officer or Cade Enforcement imspector may require the volume
{ to be reduced or ceased hased on-complaints or urréasonable sound levels.

The event will include the followlhg (checl: ali that apply):

[] LiveBand andior DJ  WNare of bandsiperforiners:
]  Pre-recordad Music

E _’_ o - sl ST i ;
-l ' _5'“('9-_ smmq }:" 3

I Iw ;‘3 ,r ;

“Start Time Erd Time Start Tims End Time | Start Thme End Time

ok
Manday

Tuesda;r

: Wednesday
‘S"hmsda'yi
Fi iday '
qaturday

1 Sunday

[C] PA System

[ Sound/music/noise may be audible beyond the evenl venue; therefore, an-event stalf member will be
assigned to monitor the sound level during the event to ensure sound does nol unreasonably disturh the
| surrounding area.

Contact person; ‘Phone number: __ .

Tourism and Evenis
7506 &, Indlan Sehodl Rd. Scottedale, AZ 8525



II Jigor is prosent al your event, siziz o requires [0~ o conta ned within the evenl veniie. A ligu
license is required If the event is open (o the public, or if there is a fee for admission, food or drink. Anyone
serving liquor must be-familiar with-state-liquer laws. See the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and

Check only one:

Control website for additional information. Use adequate fencing and security persohnsl {o prevent aleohol
from heing removed from your-liquar ficensed premises.

[M  Liguor will not be present at the event. :

[l The event is adjacent to an existing liquor establishment (réstauiant or bar).and the establishment
wiil temporarily exlend their liquordicensed premises to inciude an afea which does not have a liquor
license. The fiquorestablishment must.complste he Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses & Control
(DILC) Extension of Premises form (click hare) and you must include this: compleled form (signed and
notarized) with your.aveni application. Once approvacl by the city, vou must take the form io Arizona
DLLG at 800 W, Washingion, 5" Floar, Tor iskuance o (he aciual extansion permit, For addlitional i

Information; call 602-542-5141,

[  Liquor will be present and { am making arrangsments wiih a. charilable, clvic, fraternal, politicat
paﬂylcampﬁ;gn commiltee, or religious.orgahization for Special Event Liquor Licehise (8ELL). The
SELL form available-from Tax and. License at-480-312-2400 {or cilcic here). The SELL approval
process Is handled throligh Tax and License and SELL applicatioris- should be submnitted at least-21

days prior fo the event,

Qrganlzation name:

€

|3

. musie, estimated attendanoe,-and the event organizer's name and rmobile phonie number for contact before,
-ciuring and after the event for ali street closures.

|1t applicable, event notffication will be-mads by (check all that apply):

e
i

£ ioast wo wesks prics (o the event, Holi®ation is taquired for svents with off-slte parking, nuidool amplified
sourid, street closures, fireworks, or other nolable impact fo.adjacent areas: Notfflcation letlers raust Include a

Please note that approval/sion off may be required if your svant includes g street.closure, sound-ampiification
or other impacts to the surrounding neighbore or businesses.

Notification is required to Inform nearby or affected businesses, properly owners and HOA's within 300 festat

“atslad deseription of the event including stup and teardown times, starting and ending times for outdoor

L1 it Clemait Clboor hangers L rliers [d in person [iother

Tourisim and Evenis
7506 . Indian Sekool Rd, Scottsdale, AL 85261



Saniiation company:

Applicant is respansiblo for {8) having a sufficiant number of containars o handle all frosh generaled hy the
event; (b} removing frash during and aftar the event; [r) completely cleaning the sile-end adjacentiaffecied
areas after the event; and (d) providing a sufficlent number of restroom facllities (including ADA accessible
iacilities), It any paition of the event takes place an cily property and city personnel need o perform addiionat
cleaning due io youi cvent, you wiil e isilled by the Cliy of Scolisdale for this service,

| To arrange for garhage dumpster by the Cily of Scotisdale, contact Solid Waste at 480-312-6600.

“The évent will includs the following (check all that apply):

1 Barbags dumipsters.(show on Speclal Event site plan)

CGontacl person:

Fhona number:

| -

Regtroom company:

[l Partebie rastroci facilitios (show on Special Event sile plan)

Dontact pargont

Phone murmber:

Touriem and Evenis

7406 . fndian School R, Scoitedals, A7 HH2FY
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WARF{M‘ﬂ prlicam warrants the | ihe information provirled in this anplication Jo e and acourate te ihe hast

. OF A s ke en bofief.

¢ INDEMMIFICATION: To the fillest exiant allowed by law, the Applicant agreas o defend, indemnify and hold .
- harmiess tha Gity, ity officers, officials, represenialives, agenis, empioyaes and volun.a.ﬂrs from and againsi ail -
; allegations, demands, provas dings, suits, asiions, <haims, danwgs:s, F353E5, & -0 0 including b el ficdtod

. to, atforney fees, ceurl cosis, the cost of appeliate proteedinas, and all cleim actusting and handiing e¥penses, .

“aising fram or relatad o anw .:zcta or orresicns of the penmit holder ar il agenis, comtractors and °
L oubedniracton reialed to e 5o cial Puani

: SPECIAL BVENT PERMIT CONDITIONS: Other conditians may bs imposed.

o Slate law requires that liguor must be contained within the aiea pennitted by your Staie licensa,
a \,,ﬂ‘y law prnmhfts discharges of anythitig bul sterm water inle the City's rights-of-way, storm drain
systen and natural washes,

v Slreed glosuves, Baicades snd even. iayor 50! b as shown on the apdeovéd < oid Brircads plan,
if the City perfarms any cleanup due to your event, you will be hilled and required to pay for the
: cleaniing.

= Ifthern iz damags to Oy drope v due to yoor event, you will be billed and required to pay for its repalr,

o Ypu are required lo provide a safe and secure environment at vour event. Private secuiity musi be

, licensed In the State of Arlzona.

o A Clly Police Officar or Code Enforcement Inspecior hiay reguire the music volume to be reduced or :
t.&a8ad. ;

: s You must comply with ihe maximum occupaiicy load set by the Fire Department.
C Mg epast alleir for Immadiata fire lane and other saciirity access at vonr event,

Appdicant’s bigl'iﬂ*'i.ﬂﬂ halow aitharizés a City réprasentalive (o inspeci a specmi event on Cily o privaie
=rtir at any .:mF‘ inr hsullm seiin,
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-:' 1. f am thQ properiy-owmar or the suharlzed agent of the pronerty owner for this application. excluding Cify
: zgend for alb suners, and tha w ord "o

+ FRLEy 04 Na mannr ’Hr__z- fam :‘h.-; =

H

""'.".-'_!".J ir ey iy |l bR

5 S
reinrs o ham =i,

19, I have wriltan. Hulhoﬂly fram the properly owner regarc
- related matlers mvoiais all propsiy identified in this appic=

L e B 313012016

';g‘any am:l all Special Evant- reguiatoly and H
S iy Gty prope )

o

WP

SHSiLe L) s R raTd el 1A ke Lewddin joni i pEied g Lagit i
,ts,::;,y on &_;lwe:xar@r / mambar ' =
Primed Name and Title ot H;)pi!&dﬂl ;

R 1

Touwrism and Evenls
7806 F, indian School Rd: Bootadales, AZ 85251



Exhibit 2



Our Markets

aNot your typical Farmers Market

aNot your typical locations-out of town

aUsually held within Master Planned Communities
8Off the beaten path — deep into communities
aHidden in parking lots of Community Centers
a&Not visible from any main roads

aSchedule (days & times) changes regularly due to community events




YO

g«;*fa- Sec. 8.537. - Special events and theme amusement parks

Special events and amusement parks are allowed signs as follows:

|. General.

A. Events/activities which will occur on a designated date or during a limited
period of time shall be allowed signage to promote the event/activity. The signage will
support, promote and/or advertise the event/activity and may contain the names of a
specific agency or business that is sponsoring the event/activity. All signs associated

with the event/activity are temporary and must be removed by an the date specified by
the general manager.

B. The organization sponsoring the event/activity shall prepare and submit an
application, consisting of a complete list and description of all signs, including
directional signs, banners, pennants, flags, balloons, lighting, hot/cold air balloons and
other features associated with the event/activity, and proposed times for erecting and

removing the signs. The application will be reviewed and approved by the general
manager.




History

&Ran successfully with signs

&City issued notice to comply & rejected all sign requests
aFollowing year tried to work with City-moved market locations
8All suggestions failed-Markets failed

3BOA Appeal — not there to decide if code was being followed but only to
determine if ZA decision was being consistently applied.

8GB closed doors

aResearched City History- Found signs allowed until 2007- banned signs
aFiled for 2016 Special event permit-signs allowed?7?7?7?




2016 Current Sign Map
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&Z% June 30, 2016 ZA Denial letter

2

& Consistently enforced with all events

2 City follows a policy of reviewing requests against certain criteria

8 All event signs are restricted to 1 mile from Site. (New Enforced Rule)

# General Aesthetics- natural beauty of the community

8 Traffic Safety- reducing signs visible to motorist promotes greater traffic safety.
8 Advertising verse directional

& Private off-premise signage is not permitted within the city right-of-way.

& Side Note- The city claims they have been “allowing off-premises traffic directional
signage in association with a special event permit.” Since when? Denied in 2015
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PGA - Spemal Event Application

iSpecial Event Permit
Pre-Application and
wConcurrent Application

-PA-

Purpose: [hank you for choosing Scotisdale as the focetion for your event. The purpose of he Pre-
Applicatiz submital and Special Events Commitse meeting. is for the applicant and Cily Stull lo uisouws (e
proposed spesial event request and fhe informaton thatis y for Sty Staft o procass un spplication
thal oempies vith of ndes, regulationd and best practices for @ safs eveat.

Submtal: Thank you for choosing Scottsdale as the location for your event. You may submi your
application pniine or in person at the One-Stop-Shop locxed at 7447 East ndian School Road. Plessa note
"t there is an 367 nonrefundsble submitsl les for the spplication. All checks shal ba payatie tc “Clty of
Sttilsdule”, checks and credit cards sre piso accepted,

Scheduling: Aftar this packe* has been accepted at the One-Stop-Shop, astafl member will conled tha
Applicant within Tee (5) 61af* Working Days to schedule a meoling with the Specisl Eveni Conmities,
Generally, 8 meating Is scheculed wihin fiva (5) to fitecn (15) Staff ‘Working Days fror the date of the

mamreﬂ%lmhhumrnmuwﬂwﬂmuuw Inclan School Rd.
mmmhm reproventatham of various city cepartments with differing 8-ess of expentise.
The meeting is inforrmal and you can sk questions, solkit supaestions, and even modify your event plans.
Onea an apghicalon is aporoved hﬁ-ddEMMlb;llWhmntmpﬂmoMudﬂ%
for evonts on publc property. The pait fes Is separate from your $57 subritisl

Pnhlelﬂmn!m'mmmmnh—mdhnmmmmwmaﬂu\

! “ContactiMonmation
;mnn'- um.g The Thunderbirds

Moblle Plione:  Johr Bridger: M)TMM

E-mall: Jridge-@phoenbopen com i

Organixation ar 1y, 11, \ndarhiris

Buginess Neme
| Holding Event:

omm«nwmmmmm JﬁmBﬂdgargtﬂJmnGdl -

Hoblle Phans: John Bridger (602) TBS—HEHJorm Goft (302; 757-8390
o SRR —

Tourism and Events
7506 E Indian School Rd. Scoltsdale, AZ 15251
480-312-T17T

B23M5

A L U prem il imsasmal Diy Do Sea il Ladeds: s hu‘mmmm s equined fror ary tant 400 xquaes fret ar larger 1717 feet
x 2T fmet or larger). Tenia shal. ba shawr: on the Opecial Cvant site plan. or additional inforniation. call 480
212-1049. Teixt per nit apwlivetions must be received by o Ucottadaie | ne Jepartment et lenat 1U days pnor 1o
the event

o Thene will e o ds D0 s Tl oo Loy,
LT o Prolm

Cunilend perso. Rl’ﬂdy Casiro rhone mumbern (602) 318-5660

DoRTTIGr ool e i dloclsiaul puirmil iuuud by Hamit ServISes 1o fequred for any ammﬁu Z0kw or larneT
oontion ot the: ganwrale: uhall boe chuwn v o Speacial Evem e pian, .

@ e e e eroigns described as

I toraenda|
(RO?) 7TRT-3300
)

|| iamilia o

Comibacl: paisaii, Jdnhn Coff

. Fhene number:

Sl iy

: Eurima s we regubaed by Une Do ing OnRner s w-i naifl --u-m—nl' BN LU (P T B
macji et Approuvnn siges 2wl harners may uet
| faca LFe ntarier of the evert venuc. Ug s'
I-n.........mm..n.mhumuungp-h.k..l T
1 Unouhorsl exgre (8 cw locations on Spec sl Event site plan and/or area map) &
] Signe or bgnmang vicibe fram outside ta vanue (how puations on Spoectul Geont sile pileg

Describe (include dimensions and wording): oany connsan A syio aoavi gl sl s sl se G b ek, .

e - —

1€ v m faw el retail Rabas, cinplaydnformatinon, games. =) will be presmnt at yon- marenl. you must supply =
list o} yehdors vath thia apphcation and also comact tic City of Beattooniae 1Ay ana | icanne | nnrment at 4l
FL 3 U+

Theevart wil Inciuds the foliowny cualagarmes of vond u's vk ek ul Uik apply).
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7506 E. mthan School He. Scottadulc, AL Bu2Z01
ARD-212.74977

EXACT SAME APPLICATION AS | FILL OUT




What is the difference between these signs?

-  l

Laidlffacksin_

This one gets unlimited locations with This one is heavily regulated and
no restrictions or violations locations restricted.




BJ / PGA Sign Locations-2016 approved by ZA

ZA Criteria- only allow enough signs as needed to find event
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What Happened to the 1 mile rule?
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SIGNS IN THE RIGHT OF WAY
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WHAT IS THE DIFFERENCE?

-

Should one sign receive special treatment over the other?
Weould-thatbe-consent-enforcement?




Sign Placement

a8 Each location has been researched for maximum benefit and safety

8 We poll every customer about the signs and locations

8 All locations are accessible without interfering with traffic

8 All signs are securely anchored to stay in place in heavy wind storms
#No signs are placed on sidewalks

8 No signs are placed to interfere with Pedestrian or Bike traffic

8 No signs are placed on ANY corner

8 No signs are placed to block traffic visibility or City signs

8 We check in with local business regularly to insure there are no problems
8 We have received nothing but positive feedback from the Community

8 Signs are placed during market set up and removed promptly after- max 6 hours up
2 We take pride in our Signs




COMPARISON

GREEN BEE

PGA / BARRETT JACKSON

Held Special Event Permit

Held Special Event permit

Required to submit Sign map

No Sign map required

Signs require approval

No approval needed

2015-1 sign allowed at ingress into parking lot

2015-Unlimited ALL Signs allowed

2016- Allowed signs up to 1 mile

2016- No restrictions- 3.7 miles away

Signs only allowed during event times

Signs allowed 24/7 for 16 plus consecutive days

Signs not allowed on sidewalk or ROW

Signs allowed on sidewalk and ROW

2015-issued notice to comply

Never violated - clear violation of STATE law

ZA: claims “Signs not allowed due to aesthetics”

Aesthetics aren’t effected by these specific signs

ZA: claims “Community doesn’t want them”

Communities assumed opinion doesn’t matter

ZA: claims “Traffic Safety issues”

PGA signs are more important then traffic signs

ZA: claims “Signs are promotional not directional”

Admits used for branding yet unlimited allowed




What this Proves?

& The City is not consistently applying the sign code
“no you cant, but for you its ok.”
& All ZA reasons for denial are contradicted

“I'm sorry your sign effects the beauty of Scottsdale, but this similar
sign is like flowers in a garden, everyone loves flowers.”

8 ZA bases Sign Criteria on who the applicant / speaker is
“sorry if you were Barrett Jackson we would allow you to use signs.”
& There are no standard rules that are applied to everyone-

Apparently the name on the sign greatly effects its safety issues.
& Zoning Official is abusing their discretion.

Does this need further examples?
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Freedom of Speech

aUnder the Zoning Administrator’s decision and on its face, the Scottsdale
City Code violates my free speech rights as guaranteed by the First and
Fourteenth Amendments to United States Constitution as well as the free
speech guarantees of Article I, Section 6 of the Arizona Constitution. The
code contains unconstitutional content-based and speaker-based
restrictions and create an unconstitutional prior restraint on my free speech

rights.




Equal Protection

aUnder the Zoning Administrator’s decision and on its face, the Scottsdale
City Code violates the equal protection guaranteed by the Fourteenth
Amendment to the United States Constitution and Article Il, Section 13 of
the Arizona Constitution. The code contains unconstitutional content-based
and speaker-based restrictions.




Due Process

aUnder the Zoning Administrator’s decision and on its face, the Scottsdale
City Code violates due process of law as guaranteed by the Fourteenth
Amendment to the United States Constitution and Article |l, Section 4 of the
Arizona Constitution. The code does not contain explicit standards of
application so as to prevent arbitrary and discriminatory enforcement and
does not provide a person of ordinary intelligence with a reasonable
opportunity to know how many signs they may use.
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Exhibit 3



City of Scottsdale
Board of Adjustment
Regular Meeting

Marked Agenda

6:00 p.m., Wednesday, September 7, 2016
City Hall Kiva
3939 N. Drinkwater Blvd

CALL TO ORDER - 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL — Board Member Martinez absent. All others present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Review and possible approval of July 13, 2016 Board of Adjustment Special

Meeting Minutes
— Board Member Donahoe made a motion to approve Special Meeting
Minutes of July 13, 2016. Vice Chair Garry seconded the motion, which

carried 6-0.

REGULAR AGENDA

2. 10-BA-2016 (70th & Earll Townhomes Variances),

Request by owner for variances to the City of Scottsdale Zoning Ordinance, Section
5.704.B.2 pertaining to the restriction in building height to one (1) story adjacent to a
single-family residential district, and Section 5.704.D.1 pertaining to relief from the building
setback abutting a R-1 district, for a property located at 3106 N. 70th Street with Medium
Density Residential (R-3) zoning.

Located at 3106 N 70Th Street

Steven Bruckal, applicant, Bonnie Griffing, owner

Ben Moriarity, coordinator
— Board Member Donahoe made a motion to deny variance of Section

5.704.B.2. Board Member Adli seconded the motion, which carried 6-0.
— Board Member Donahoe made a motion to deny variance of Section
5.704.D.1. Vice Chair Garry seconded the motion, which carried 5-1 with
Board Member Belknap dissenting.




Board of Adjustment Agenda
September 7, 2016 Page 2

3. 11-BA-2016 (Behar Residence),

Request by owner for variances to the City of Scottsdale Zoning Ordinance, Section
5.204.E.1.a and Section 5.204.E.1.c, pertaining to relief from the front yard setback for a
property located at 8011 E. Larkspur Drive with Single-family Residential (R1-35) zoning.

Located at 8011 E Larkspur Drive

Tyler Green, applicant, Ben Middlemiss & Mary Behar, owner

Ben Moriarity, coordinator

- Vice Chair Garry made a motion to deny the variance. Board Member Mona

seconded the motion, which carried 6-0.

4. 9-BA-2016 (Green Bee Produce ZA Appeal)

Request by applicant for an Appeal of Zoning Administrator's written decision dated June
30, 2016 regarding special event signage for Green Bee Produce, a temporary mobile
farmer's market.

Located at 16116 N. McDowell Mountain Ranch Rd.

Green Bee Produce, applicant Aaron Shearer

Cheryl Sumners, Coordinator

Motion for jurisdiction by Vice Chair Garry; 2" by Board Member Belknap. Motion
approved 6-0.

Motion to affirm by Board Member Adli; 2" by Donahoe. Motion carried 5-1 with
Vice Chair Garry dissenting.

ADJOURNMENT-8:35 PM

Board of Adjustment consists of:

Matt Metz, Chair Paul Garry, Vice Chair
Alper Adli, Board Member Gary Donahoe, Board Member
Dana Belknap, Board Member Sergio Martinez, Board Member

Greg Mona, Board Member

Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation such as a sign
language interpreter, by contacting Casey Steinke at 480-312-2611. Requests should be made
as early as possible to allow time to arrange accommodations. For TTY users, the Arizona
relay service (1-800-367-8939) may contact Casey Steinke at 480-312-2611.



